

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LOCAL REVIEW BODY

THURSDAY 21 NOVEMBER 2019 COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HOUSE, HADDINGTON

Committee Members Present:

Councillor N Hampshire (Chair) Councillor L Bruce Councillor J Findlay Councillor J Williamson

Advisers to the Local Review Body:

Mr C Grilli, Legal Adviser to the LRB Mr M Mackowiak, Planning Adviser to the LRB

Clerk:

Ms F Currie, Committees Officer

Apologies:

None

Declarations of Interest

None

Introductory Statement by the Legal Adviser

The Legal Adviser welcomed everyone to the meeting and briefly summarised the procedure and confirmed that Councillor Hampshire had been elected to chair the Local Review Body on this occasion.

1. PLANNING APPLICATION No. 19/00467/P: REPLACEMENT OF FLAT ROOF WITH PITCHED ROOF, 3 PARK LANE, HADDINGTON

The Chair invited the Planning Adviser, who had had no involvement in the original decision, to present a summary of the planning policy considerations in this case.

The Planning Adviser outlined the details of the review against a refusal of planning permission for the replacement of the existing flat roof of a house with a pitched and hipped roof. He summarised the proposals including the size, elevation and materials, and advised Members that no public letters of objection or any other comments were received in relation to the application. He explained that planning applications must be determined in accordance with relevant planning policies unless material considerations indicated otherwise. In this case, policy DP5 (Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings) of the adopted East Lothian Local Development Plan (2018) was relevant to the determination of the application. This Policy stated that all alterations and extensions to existing buildings must be well integrated into their surroundings, and must be in keeping with the original building or complementary to its character and appearance. The alteration must also be of a size, form, proportion and scale appropriate to the existing house, and must be subservient to, and either in keeping with, or complementary to the existing house. Policy DP5 also stated that where a development did not comply with any of the above criteria it would only be permitted where other positive planning and design benefits could be demonstrated.

The Planning Adviser summarised the case officer's report. It confirmed that owing to the orientation and positioning of the applicant's house the proposed roof, would not give rise to harmful overshadowing of neighbouring residential properties and the proposed roof light would not give rise to harmful overlooking of any neighbouring houses. It noted that the applicant's house was one of 4 similarly designed, single storey houses that featured flat roofs with deep timber fascia boards. These houses were of a distinctively different architectural form to the other groups of houses that formed the remainder of the built form of Park Lane. The proposed pitched and hipped roof would significantly alter the character and appearance of the house, which forms part of a homogenous group of houses whose construction with flat roofs and deep fascia boards was a deliberate and distinctive design element. The proposed pitched roof by its size, form, proportions and scale would not be well integrated with its surroundings, but instead would compromise the distinctive architectural form of the house. The case officer also assessed that the proposal would compromise the architectural harmony of the distinctive group of houses of which the applicant's house was part. Therefore the proposed pitched roof was contrary to Policy DP5.

The Planning Adviser then summarised the applicant's submission which maintained that the reasoning used by the planning officer was factually incorrect and contradicted by previous planning approvals. The applicant raised the following points:

1) Their immediate neighbour at 1 Park Lane, received planning permission in 2013 (13/00289/P) to alter and extend the property. This approval gave permission to the building with a lead fascia which is substantially shallower in

depth than that of the original house. This previous decision stood in contradiction with part of the basis for refusal of the current application, namely that deep fascia boards were a deliberate and distinctive design element of this grouping of houses. The applicant argued that the continuity had already been lost for this design feature and this was evident when the current application was submitted.

- 2) Their immediate neighbour at No. 5 also had their fascia board renewed with PVC resulting in a significantly shallower fascia. This was also present on submission of the current application.
- 3) These houses were not built to be part of a group, and differ in their external appearance, therefore the point within the refusal about *harmonious* appearance of this homogenous group of houses was incorrect.
- 4) 3 Park Lane backs on to the property accessed via the West Road that was also a single storey, flat roofed house, but was granted planning permission (01/00128/FUL) in 2001 to have a pitched roof with accommodation installed. This roof alteration was substantially greater and the previous decision was clearly contradictory to the current position taken by planning officers.
- 5) The applicant's house was largely surrounded by two storey housing.
- 6) The flat roof had been a continuous problem in relation to maintenance and in its current form was not sustainable.

Summing up, the Planning Adviser indicated that the Local review Body was being asked to consider whether the proposed pitched roof would significantly alter the architectural form of the house and in doing so interrupt the harmonious appearance of this homogenous group of houses that had a deliberate and distinctive design element in a form of flat roofs and deep fascia boards; and whether the proposed pitched roof would be well integrated with its surroundings.

Councillor Williamson asked whether the four houses, of which 3 Park Lane was one, were of any special architectural merit. The Planning Adviser indicated that while they were of quite distinctive design the houses were not listed.

The Chair asked his colleagues if they had sufficient information to proceed to determine the application and they agreed that they had.

Councillor Bruce had found the site visit helpful in clarifying the context of the application. He noted that the buildings opposite and further down the street were of different designs but that No. 3 sat within a group of four houses with flat roofs. As a result, he was not convinced that the proposals would be well integrated and considered that a pitched roof among flat roofs would be too much of a visual contrast. He was therefore minded to refuse planning permission.

Councillor Williamson said that having walked around the area of Park Lane he had noted that many of the properties had been altered in some way, whether by replacement of fascia boards or other changes. He was also of the view that flat roofs were less sustainable than other types and would require increased maintenance. The properties were of no special architectural merit and he did not think that a pitched roof would interfere with the integrity of the surrounding properties or that there would be any loss of amenity. In his view, the proposals did not contravene policy DP5 and he was minded to grant planning permission.

Councillor Findlay said while it was clear that originally all four houses had been harmonious and homogenous in design, subsequent alterations to fascias had destroyed much of that uniformity of appearance. In addition, the four flat roofed

Local Review Body - 21 11 19

houses were surrounded by other properties with pitched roofs. For these reasons he was minded to recommend that planning permission be granted.

The Chair said that the property formed part of a row of bungalows with flat roofs and although there had been some minor alterations it remained an attractive row of flat roofed properties. He also commented that there had been significant improvements in insulation and maintenance of flat roofs which made them more sustainable. In his view, introducing a pitched roof among other flat roofs would look odd and would not enhance the character of the area. He agreed with the case officer's conclusion that a pitched roof would significantly alter the architectural form of the house and he was therefore minded to refuse planning permission.

The Legal Adviser noted the divergence of opinion and votes: two for upholding the decision of the case officer; and two for overturning that decision. The Chair was invited to add his casting vote and he voted to uphold the decision of the case officer to refuse planning permission.

Decision

The ELLRB agreed to uphold the decision of the case officer to refuse the application for the following reason:

1. The proposed pitched roof would significantly alter the architectural form of the house and in doing so interrupt the harmonious appearance of this homogenous group of houses the flat roofs and deep fascias of which are a deliberate and distinctive design element. Consequently, by its size, form, proportions and scale the proposed pitched roof would not be well integrated with its surroundings. Therefore, the proposed pitched roof is contrary to Policy DP5 of the adopted East Lothian Local Development Plan 2018.

Signed		
Sianaa		
SIGHEO		

Councillor N Hampshire Chair of Local Review Body (Planning)